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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and Iotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 12.
All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements are expressed in
millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated HK$7,400 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust (the “Trust”) and HK$54 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS

The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in the “Board
of Stewards” section.

Dr Simon S O Ip and Mr Anthony W K Chow were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the 2016 Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Dr Simon S O Ip, Mr Lester C H Kwok, Dr
Eric Li Ka Cheung and Mrs Margaret Leung will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. All four Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Club’s
business to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is contained on pages 2 to 6, and is part of the Report of the Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES

The principal activities and Directors of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on pages 70 and 71.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

SimonS O lp
Chairman
26 July 2017
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB

(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 12 to 71, which comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club, the financial statements of The
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF STEWARDS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Board of Stewards
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Stewards is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Stewards either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Stewards.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Stewards’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 July 2017
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

maER
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for the year ended 30 June

EEYu in HK$ million HiZF Note 2017 2016
EEHHE Number of race meetings 1 87 84
M EERIR F 4EFE Amounts wagered by local customers 210,400 199,234
EERMEEERIMOTEEE Amounts of non-local bets placed
by commingling partners 6,124 3,462
T4 Total amounts wagered 2.3 216,524 202,696
B REEHRA Betting and lottery revenue 2.4 33,908 32,683
TERT R RS E R Betting and lottery duty (21,194) (20,379)
R T oMb R H S Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (67) @7)
BEEe Lotteries Fund (1,202) (1,282)
“F R EE Net margin and commission 11,445 10,975
HABYA Other revenue 3,267 3,326
14,712 14,301
KRR Operating costs (9,964) (9,642)
BRTERESNNEREA Present value of donations to the Trust 10 (7,323) (3,500)
MBREIBEAESTEENEL (BR)/ Bt Operating (deficit)/surplus after donations to the Trust (2,575) 1,159
FR A B e Interest income from deposits 111 109
FHEERRBPIREAE AR/ (BE) Surplus/(deficit) from securities investments
and long-term investment portfolios 7 355 (378)
ERESERENRAR/ (EE) Surplus/(deficit) from Contingency Fund
investments 8 973 (67)
WMEER Finance costs 24 (5) @)
1,434 (343)
FrE&4ArRF/(EE) Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures 15 2,917 (550)
MR FRIBRT R AR Surplus before taxation 1,776 266
BB Taxation 9 (566) (564)
BEERFERS/ (BE) Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 1,210 (298)
ABET in HK$ million 2017 2016
HFRIRIRE A R RFHRE B & Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns
HE WG AT & Btk and gain on sale of properties 4,164 3,956
& Bl Investment returns 4,329 (933)
HEMERE Gain on sale of properties 40 179
HIRRBIIB G MR B EE S TIBAIN AL Surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust 8,533 3,202
BRTERESNFERE Present value of donations to the Trust (7,323) (3,500)
KR fe e F AR/ (B518) Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 1,210 (298)

MBRIBEARRHCERRREEYEKZER  Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns and gain on sale of properties is
KRS EETEEBRBTETLESNFIE the basis for determining the Group’s donations to the Trust.

HYEAE o
REEBRBIEFZF B - EHREREHR  Investment returns include interest income from deposits, surplus/deficit from securities investments
BHRAMER/EE - BRESIRENES/EE - and long-term investment portfolios, surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments, finance

&R - JAKRFTh Investment Trust & Bond costs and share of profits/losses of the Investment Trust and the Bond Trust.
Trust /035 5l /E518 ©

F+tEZt+ BN BEAGRA VSRR I ° The notes on pages 17 to 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mAEREWER
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for the year ended 30 June

EEYu in HK$ million HiZF Note 2017 2016
KRG e F AR/ (B51E) Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 1,210 (298)
Hup2mikes/ (658) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
TrEEFPEBEAMSERMNER Items that will not be reclassified to income
HIRERANEBNERTE statement
Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations 27 299 (187)
Hig gL sy BB A MR KRAIER Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to income statement
AHHENBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BEZE) Change in value
BRHAFLRBRERS Debt securities and long-term
investment portfolios 27 - (294)
HRESKRE Contingency Fund investments 28 - (249)
ERESRHBKRAHES Development Fund long-term
investment portfolios 29 - 9)
Frit& & AR EMEEKE Share of other comprehensive income
of joint ventures 15 - 564
B HMERR Currency translation differences 27 (32) (166)
RNEERTBEHEMEEUES/(E8) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,
net of tax 267 (341)
NEEREKZ/ (B R%E Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1,477 (639)

F+tEZt+ BN BEAGRA VSRR I ° The notes on pages 17 to 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI E
~A=1+H at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million #f5E Note 2017 2016
EMEEE Non-current assets
YEE - BBl R B3 Property, plant and equipment 12 12,020 10,038
BEMAOMRE T R FERE Leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases 13 1,133 1,177
REWE Investment properties 14 1 1
BRENEIEE Investments in joint ventures 15 27,384 21,136
HERESKRE Contingency Fund investments 16 8,112 7,522
RHKEEA Long-term investment portfolios 17 2,790 4,037
REATEFTF0E Long-term prepayments 18 412 374
RIEFSREAE Deferred income tax assets 19 8 8
51,860 44,293
MEVEE Current assets
BB HEE Debt securities portfolio 20 - 507
FsFEEE Assets held for sale 12,14 1 -
B 5 RE MW RIA Trade and other receivables 21 466 471
HibRBNEE Other current assets 21 420 504
PTHEemIA Derivative financial instruments 22 6 15
KHATE R Short-term deposits 23 1,664 2,313
B RkBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 4,183 5,303
6,740 9,113
BN EE Current liabilities
SEEI-EA Short-term loans 24 (142) (111)
Z 5 REAMERERK Trade and other payables 25,33.2 (6,977) (6,222)
TEUFRIE Receipts in advance (371) (365)
RS H A& Current income tax liabilities (492) (467)
PTESBMIT A Derivative financial instruments 22 (29) (48)
8,011) (7,213)
TEN BB/ EEFE Net current (liabilities)/assets (1,271) 1,900
EREAE Non-current liabilities
RIEPREHBE Deferred income tax liabilities 19 (494) (387)
PTHEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments 22 (18) (135)
RERAEHE Defined benefit scheme 26 (577) 871)
HAhFERTRRK Other payables 33.2 (3,223) -
(4,312) (1,393)
46,277 44,800
#t Reserves 27 16,100 22,864
HBRES Contingency Fund 28 28,988 20,747
ERES Development Fund 29 1,189 1,189
EmiBE Total equity 46,277 44,800
5% Simon SO Ip
HER Anthony W K Chow
AxE Stewards

E+tAREtT - ANMEBEEAGS

B 75T A) — 305 ° The notes on pages 17 to 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GomERBE
HRES BREAS
i Contingency Development it

BEET in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
—O—RFtA—B&EH Balance at 1 July 2016 22,864 20,747 1,189 44,800
MRIE RSB RS Net surplus after taxation 1,210 - - 1,210
R Transfers (8,241) 8,241 - -
REFZHRBE R E A 2 E R Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of tax 267 - - 267
AEEEmIRSERE Total comprehensive income for the year (6,764) 8,241 - 1,477
ZO—tFRNA=T A& Balance at 30 June 2017 16,100 28,988 1,189 46,277
—O—hRFtA—B&H Balance at 1 July 2015 28,845 15,396 1,198 45,439
REE R FEEE Net deficit after taxation (298) - - (298)
R Transfers (5,266) 5,266 - -
REERBEHEMEEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year,

net of tax @17) 85 ©) (341)
AEEEHEBRTE Total comprehensive loss for the year (5,981) 5,351 9) (639)
ZO—RERNA=THERR Balance at 30 June 2016 22,864 20,747 1,189 44,800

ETttARECT—ANHREEA

AN
=A

B 75T A) — 305 ° The notes on pages 17 to 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

HERA=THILEE

for the year ended 30 June

BEAT in HK$ million B3 Note 2017 2016
EEED Operating activities
EERBMELENT S Cash generated from operations 30 3,227 2,695
BRI FATEH Income tax paid (493) (509)
EREEBMEENFRE Net cash generated from operating activities 2,734 2,186
HEED Investing activities
BIEAR A=E AN LR BATF RN Decrease in short-term deposits with
maturities more than 3 months 649 153
EEWE - BRI Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,075) (2,819)
&AM E TSR Payment for leasehold land under finance lease (669) -
HEREYE Sale of investment properties - 187
HEWZ - R REIM Sale of property, plant and equipment 61 -
2 UERF B Interest received 133 127
2 U ER AR B Dividends received 85 93
HEERNFIMEFE Injection into joint ventures (4,425) (2,324)
A&EEARIER Redemption from joint ventures 3,916 1,198
BERATEESBERSYIENMBEE Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (5,665) -
PERATEERRIBSIENVISEE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 6,704 -
BEAMHLENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets - (2,657)
HERHEENBEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets - 3,740
HITES BT AU/ () F5E5E Net receipt from/(payment for) derivative financial
instruments 3 (26)
RHRABEHNFRIEM Increase in deposits held in long-term
investment portfolios (1,550) (817)
REEBFANFEHRS Net cash used in investing activities (3,833) (2,645)
MEES Financing activities
BEXHAFE Interest paid 5) @)
BREE Repayment of borrowings (19) (39)
BEMSHIE Proceed from borrowings 50 -
M FEHE IO FRNEZH Net interest expenses paid on interest rate swaps (32) @7)
METDHAMANERS Net cash used in financing activities (6) (73)
Re kBZFEWFRL Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,105) (532)
FYReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 5,303 5,885
HMEE Exchange losses (15) (50)
FERSREEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,183 5,303
RekREeEBMEEIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
RHATER Short-term deposits 23 3,421 4,218
BITER - e REMRBDES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 23 762 1,085
4,183 5,303

—E KRB

9
+
a)

i

AN
ZVTLZI

MIGEHRRN—F D

The notes on pages 17 to 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley,
Hong Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on pages 70 and 71.

The last three race meetings of the 2015/16 racing season were held on 1 July 2016, 6 July 2016
and 10 July 2016 (“July 2016 race meetings”) and the last four race meetings of the 2016/17
racing season were held on 1 July 2017, 9 July 2017, 12 July 2017 and 16 July 2017 (“July 2017
race meetings”). Accordingly, the financial results of July 2016 race meetings have been included
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 and the financial results
of July 2017 race meetings will be included in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 30 June 2018. The 2015/16 and 2016/17 proforma consolidated income statement for the
full racing season is shown on page 72.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million),
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 12 to 71 were approved by the Board of Stewards
on 26 July 2017.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) Amendments to standards that are relevant to the Group’s operations and are effective for
the current accounting period

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement — Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements: Equity Method

Annual Improvements 2014 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The adoption of the following amendments did not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements and has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 clarify the application of the consolidation
exception for investment entities and their subsidiaries.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 require an investor to apply the principles of business combination
accounting when it acquires an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a ‘business’ (as defined
in HKFRS 3, Business combinations).

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify guidance in HKAS 1 on materiality and aggregation, the
presentation of subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting
policies.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify when a method of depreciation or amortisation
based on revenue may be appropriate. The amendment to HKAS 16 clarifies that depreciation of
an item of property, plant and equipment based on revenue generated by using the asset is not
appropriate.

Amendments to HKAS 27 allow entities to use equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements.

Annual improvements 2014 includes changes from the 2012-2014 cycle of the annual
improvements project that affect four standards.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) New standard that is early adopted by the Group

The Group has early adopted HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial instruments” (“HKFRS 9”), with the
date of initial application on 1 July 2016, which resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to certain amounts in the consolidated financial statements (notes 2.10 and 2.2).
HKFRS 9 replaced HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (“HKAS 39”)
in terms of classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, impairment
of financial assets and hedge accounting. HKFRS 9 also significantly amends other standards
related to financial instruments such as HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

In accordance with a transitional provision in HKFRS 9, the Group has not restated comparative
figures to the consolidated financial statements. As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to follow the Group’s previous accounting policy.

(c) New standards and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations but are not yet
effective and not early adopted

The following new standards and amendments have been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2017.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes

Annual Improvements 2016 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The Group is still in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new
standards and amendments will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a position to
state whether these new standards and amendments will have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.2 Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9

The adjustments to the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are

summarised below:

(a) Reclassification and measurement of financial instruments

The Group’s Management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets and
financial liabilities held by the Group and has reclassified them with the same carrying amounts in

accordance with HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2016 as follows (note 2.10):

FTEER BREEE
Measurement category Carrying amount
FRMRTE — BBGTHERNFE 395 T — BB BMEEAIZE 5 BEBT
Original — HKAS 39 New — HKFRS 9 HK$ million
I BN 81 # & E Non-current financial assets
HRELE Contingency Fund investments
- IREE Equities A& Available-for-sale BATEESBERIE FVTPL 1,797
- BB Alternative investments A& Available-for-sale BAFEESBIERYIER FVTPL 5,298
- WEFRE R E S Funds awaiting investment B M EWFIE Loans and receivables B $5RL N Amortised cost 56
- 173X Deposits B % FEUFIE Loans and receivables 35 A Amortised cost 371
FHIIEE4H4E Long-term investment portfolios
- I%Z Equities Al & Available-for-sale RATFEEE BB FVTPL 743
- [ET5:8% Debt securities Al & Available-for-sale mATEEBBIERYIER FVTPL 82
- B E Alternative investments A & Available-for-sale AT EEBRIEZRSIER FVTPL 2,427
- MR ERE S Funds awaiting investment B & FEUFIE Loans and receivables A AN Amortised cost 22
- 773X Deposits B M EWEIE Loans and receivables # 35K AN Amortised cost 763
TENET IS EE Current financial assets
B854 4 Debt securities portfolio At H & Available-for-sale R AT EEBERIEZRYIR FVTPL 507
B 5 K E A FEUGRIE B EUERIE Loans and receivables A AN Amortised cost 471
Trade and other receivables
$TH © B T A Derivative financial instruments BRATEEBEREBRYIAR FVTPL B ATEEBERIEZRIER FVTPL 15
%G BT 3k Short-term deposits B3 N FEWFKIAE Loans and receivables AKX 7N Amortised cost 2,313
R & NI EFEY Cash and cash equivalents &3 N B U 708 Loans and receivables #35RKA Amortised cost 5,303
FENEL A& Current financial liabilities
52 EiE 3K Short-term loans #ESHPL AN Amortised cost B 35X AN Amortised cost 111
& 5 N H h FE{BR7X Trade and other payables 84K 2N Amortised cost B $5AC R Amortised cost 6,133
$74£ 4 8 T A Derivative financial instruments RAFEERBIERSIMR FVTPL BATEEEBIERYIER FVTPL 48
357 B 81 7% B f& Non-current financial liabilities
$T4 4 B T & Derivative financial instruments AT EEE BRI FVTPL BT EEERERIR FVTPL 135
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.2 Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 (cont.)

On 1 July 2016, the cumulative fair value gains related to available-for-sale financial instruments
amounting to HK$570 million, HK$2,016 million and HK$4 million were transferred from
the investment revaluation reserve to accumulated reserves of the Group, fund balance of

Contingency Fund and fund balance of Development Fund respectively (notes 27, 28 and 29).

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost are subject to the new expected credit loss model

(note 2.10(c)). There was no adjustment in respect to impairment as at 1 July 2016.

2.3 Amounts wagered

The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered as the amounts wagered by local

customers and amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners.

2017
EHEK SRR
HEXA=1THILFE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football #5 ‘g
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
i EERIE E4REE Amounts wagered by local customers 109,694 92,692 8,014 210,400
EER MG EERIMOFEEE Amounts of non-local bets placed
by commingling partners 6,124 - - 6,124
115,818 92,692 8,014 216,524
2016
BEEY BB
HEANA=+TALFE for the year ended 30 June Horse race Football 15 F
EL-Yon in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
AR TR Amounts wagered by local customers 103,891 86,795 8,548 199,234
EAGR MG EERIMOFERE Amounts of non-local bets placed
by commingling partners 3,462 - - 3,462
107,353 86,795 8,548 202,696
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2.4 Betting and lottery revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities as
revenue, which is the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends, rebates and
lottery prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and betting and lottery

revenue is shown in note 4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.5 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2017,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures
are accounted for by the Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets.

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
and movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies
of the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.6 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income
from betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for
the Club or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s
substantial investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as
deemed appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the
Contingency Fund investments and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment
income, realised surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of
additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint ventures: HKJC Investment
Trust Fund (“Investment Trust”), formerly known as HKJC Equity Trust Fund (“Equity Trust”)
and the Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”)) are held for non-trading purposes. They
are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for loans and receivables and
investments in the Investment Trust and the Bond Trust. The surplus derived from Contingency
Fund investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The
accounting policy for the financial assets of the Contingency Fund investments is stated in note
2.10.

2.7 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, is
held to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual transfer
from the net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration the
operating surplus, investment income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and
qualification fees of Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees
received during the year. The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term
investment portfolios.

2.8 Long-term investment portfolios

The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios (including investments in the
Investment Trust and the Bond Trust) is to invest surplus funds in excess of normal operational
requirements for capital appreciation over the medium to long-term.

These portfolios are held for non-trading purposes and are stated at fair value at the end of the
reporting period, except for loans and receivables and investments in the Investment Trust and
the Bond Trust. The surplus derived from these investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed
within these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investment
portfolios is stated in note 2.10.

2.9 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The accounting
policy for the financial assets of debt securities portfolio is stated in note 2.10.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.10 Financial assets

(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or (i) financial assets at amortised cost. The Contingency Fund investments,
long-term investment portfolios and debt securities portfolio contain these financial assets.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For the debt instruments, the objective of the Group’s business model is not to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows, and not both hold the financial assets to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets. All
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options,
foreign exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to
facilitate the implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as
current as they are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For those financial assets that the Group holds to collect the contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates, they are
classified as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled or with maturities within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s assets in this category include trade and other receivables, funds awaiting
investment, deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed at banks for
a fixed term of more than three months are classified as “Short-term deposits”.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.10 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement (cont.)
Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial assets
that are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including dividend income
and interest income, are recognised in income statement within “Surplus/deficit from securities
investments and long-term investment portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund
investments” in the period in which they arise.

For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values will be
determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using valuation
techniques.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.

(c) Impairment of financial assets
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For this category, impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS
9 on the reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Group considers that there is no significant financing component.
Impairment is assessed based on the lifetime ECL.

Other financial assets include funds awaiting investment, deposits, short-term deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Group considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash flows,
and are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the 12-month ECL.

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Group considers the credit risk of
a financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any contractual cash
flows from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more. When a financial asset is
unlikely to be recovered, it is considered as credit impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent period,
asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk
since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off. Such
assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the
amount of the expense in the income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.10 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets (cont.)
(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (cont.)

The Group measures ECL by using historical loss of the respective financial assets and considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available, including the following
indicators: (a) counterparty’s external credit rating and its expected change; (b) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant
changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the
payment pattern of debtors.

The Group considers the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and the 12-month ECL for the other
financial assets as minimal.

2.11 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance
leases are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance lease over the lease term

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress until they
are ready for use in the manner as intended by management.
On completion, the project costs are transferred to the

appropriate property, plant and equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (note 2.26).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.12 Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease

Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Leasehold land and land
use rights under operating lease are amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their lease terms.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (note 2.26).

2.13 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that are not occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties.
Investment properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
They are depreciated on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives at the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.14 Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or
the lease term.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, lease income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

2.15 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.17 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee
benefits, depreciation on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation
rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine
deferred income taxation.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.18 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period. The differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.20 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.21 Receipts in advance

Cash that is prepaid by members on membership subscriptions, entrance and qualification fees,
horse imports and pre-sale amounts that are received before the relevant betting services have
been rendered are included under receipts in advance.

2.22 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net of betting
dividends and rebates and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the relevant
betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election
of members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised when
the event has been held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services, stable and livery service charges and sale of
souvenir items are recognised when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant goods
have been sold.

Revenue from risk management service fee is recognised when the relevant service has been
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised on an accrual
basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.24 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon
retirement with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of the
Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBQO”) is calculated annually
by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market
yields of government securities which have terms to maturity approximating terms of the related
pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs in the
consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.25 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related
to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals
or entities.

2.26 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
depreciation and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment on
the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost to the residual
value over their estimated useful lives (note 2.11).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuation of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors including long-term
salary increase rate provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 26(d). In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the market yields of government securities which
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. Changes to the
principal actuarial assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs
in future periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the income tax and deferred tax provision. Final tax outcome
may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group recognises liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Management judgement is required in the area of impairment of non-financial assets, particularly
in assessing whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using
estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
significantly affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.
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4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and football net
of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the
Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and
payment to the Lotteries Fund.

2017
BEEY SRR

BHEAA=+TAHLFE for the year ended 30 June in Horse race Football #Hk k)
BEBT HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
PN gE Amounts wagered by local customers 109,694 92,692 8,014 210,400
BEEE  BHRES#EE Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (91,948) (80,217)  (4,327) (176,492)
IEEASE-Z- 3 UN Betting and lottery revenue 17,746 12,475 3,687 33,908
ERH RS Betting and lottery duty (12,952)  (6,238)  (2,004) (21,194)
T IMNEE Eﬁ%% Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong (67) - - (67)
BAEE Lotteries Fund - - (1,202)  (1,202)
A A Net margin and commission 4,727 6,237 481 11,445

2016
BEHEY RIIER
BEAA=1TALFE for the year ended 30 June in Horse race Football 185 “age
AEET HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
A EE RIS F AR KR Amounts wagered by local customers 103,891 86,795 8,548 199,234
BEEe  BRESES Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (87,043) (74,892)  (4,616) (166,551)
TR RS U Betting and lottery revenue 16,848 11,903 3,932 32,683
ERH R B E R Betting and lottery duty (12,291)  (5,951)  (2,137) (20,379)

[T IMDE B S Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong @7 - - (47)
AR S Lotteries Fund - - (1,282 (1,282
A R AE Net margin and commission 4,510 5,952 513 10,975

ZNT’E%%T@ URUAB R AR RER R E

— N/ —tFER=O—A/— /\EJ*E’WWE
E;‘ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ ZtJrﬁ RIRER R AE R
AMBEDZH TS C N E R IR R R A
BERENED Z—‘Fﬁn“’%

Betting duty on local horse races is charged on a progressive sliding scale on the betting revenue,
reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2016/17 and 2015/16. Betting duty on football betting is
charged at the rate of 50% on the betting revenue, while lottery duty on the Mark Six is charged at
25% on the amount wagered.
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5 HlA 5 OTHER REVENUE
BEAT in HK$ million 2017 2016
BHRBNE Charges for catering services 836 903
28 Membership fees 835 828
SEERESRBWE Stable and livery service charges 603 599
EEFMEEE TR E R & Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling partners 361 252
ESHRKE Racing related income 166 160
R EERSE Risk management service fee 104 123
HEMERE Gain on sale of properties 40 179
HERL2mAEHIE Sale of souvenir items 35 42
Evi 26 Royalty income 24 23
HA Other revenue 263 217
3,267 3,326
6 KERAK 6 OPERATING COSTS
BEET in HK$ million 2017 2016
BTARAR(IRE11) Staff costs (note 11) 4,312 4,092
Y - B REMITE (FiFE12) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 1,689 1,546
BEEES Prize money 1,126 1,072
L Y UNSE 9 Supplies and utilities 667 676
HEEmKA Cost of inventories sold 544 560
HERBER Repairs and maintenance 339 303
EHEEEENES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 170 174
EEMBAEE T3 & i R 8 (31 13) Amortisation for leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases (note 13) 27 28
FIAIE#ETTTIZIEA AR Capitalisation of amortisation to projects in progress (27) (28)
ZER B & Auditor’s remuneration 7 8
EEMe Stewards’ remuneration - -
HAb L E AR Other operating costs 1,110 1,211
9,964 9,642
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7 SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS

HEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
NEE S BRI BRI 158 B F e Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL* 358 -

u”:': ERHEEHBEENRH Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets - 110

AR ENBEERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets - (83)

AR B Dividend income from listed equities - 27

FHEBBESN WG Interest income from listed debt securities - 24

IE E T ERES A SN Interest income from unlisted debt securities - 4

eI AN FER Net losses of derivative financial instruments - (215)

HipEE Exchange differences - (241)

BB E Management fees (&) ()
355 (378)

* EE@ FEAESR T BEES MRS K R A E The amount included dividend income and interest income from the financial instruments.

8 BRAESBRENELS/ 8 SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM CONTINGENCY FUND

(E8|) INVESTMENTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
NHEES B BR A B 758 B S s Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL* 982 -

u”j%ﬂ HHEMBEENRL Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets - 88

A EMEEERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets - (213)

TR S Dividend income from listed equities - 66

BB E Management fees ) ®)
973 67)

E AREpEem T AEENRKREWZE X FE The amount included dividend income and interest income from the financial instruments.

9 MHIE 9 TAXATION

BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016

TRERFTISHR Current income tax

- &5 - Hong Kong 489 414

- BN - outside Hong Kong 31 50

- BAFERAE - adjustments in respect of prior years @ 1

IRIEFTSRL(PEE19) Deferred income taxation (note 19)

- B - Hong Kong 53 120

- BAEASN - outside Hong Kong (5) 1)
566 564

BRFER BB E G ERBSENIEE D
ZTAREBA(ZO—R"FE  BOZTAER)BE
FTE - ERINERBUGEFIMELENAESHE B
REAMRERNTIRIELEE -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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9 TAXATION (CONT.)

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong was as follows:

BB in HK$ million 2017 2016
ER IR AT &) A A Surplus before taxation 1,776 266
I E16.5%(—O—7<4F  16.5%):1 & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 293 44
HBAR TR EHHRENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries (5) (1)
BERMR ARG F L Tax effect of non-taxable income (724) (43)
TAHB S BB E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 968 526
BIEFERE Adjustments in respect of prior years 2 1
HAl Others 36 37
MBS Taxation charge 566 564

10 B
BRETELESHFIE  REEELETESN
B IEREHE -

10 DONATIONS

Donations to the Trust represent donations of the Group to the Trust for charitable purposes.

BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
BB T EESNHERE Present value of donations to the Trust 7,323 3,500
HIRERNTE Present value impact 77 -
BB T EaESmNRIE Donations to the Trust 7,400 3,500

11 BEIRA 11 STAFF COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
t%&ﬁ\@ﬁfﬂi Salaries and other costs 4,006 3,792

GG Defined contribution plan

Lﬁifﬁﬁk$ Pension costs 63 56
RIS EIf Contributions to MPF scheme 103 98
AERATE — BIRESHA(HIF26) The Scheme — pension costs (note 26) 140 146
4,312 4,092
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REML
THE T
Leasehold B0 IEAETTH
land under B/ Ti21ER
finance BF Plantand  Projects in 1aza
BB in HK$ million leases Buildings  equipment progress Total
ZO—RFEtA—BKANE Cost at 1 July 2016 1,524 5,433 15,444 2,395 24,796
wE Additions 668 79 908 2,048 3,703
s Transfers - 49 561 (610) -
ERTIREEEE Transfer to assets held for sale 8) - 1)) - 9)
BEREHE Disposals and write-offs (20) (38) (291) @ (351)
B HMERR Currency translation differences - - @ ) (14)
—O—tFXRA=ZTHKAE Cost at 30 June 2017 2,164 5,523 16,614 3,824 28,125
—O—RNFtA—BREFENEE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2016 (1,036)  (3,195) (10,526) (1) (14,758)
REEHE Depreciation for the year 21) (163)  (1,505) - (1,689)
EBRTHHEEEE Transfer to assets held for sale 7 - 1 - 8
B E ML Disposals and write-offs 9 37 283 - 329
B HMERR Currency translation differences - - 5 - 5
ZO—tFXNA=THZRBENERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2017 (1,041) (3,321) (11,742) (1) (16,105)
—O—tFXNA=THEEFE Net book value at 30 June 2017 1,123 2,202 4,872 3,823 12,020
ZO—RFEEA—BKANE Cost at 1 July 2015 1,537 5,292 13,929 1,983 22,741
®E Additions - 86 1,211 1,362 2,659
g Transfers - 81 796 (877) -
ERERAYE Transfer to investment properties - ©) - - ®)
BEREHE Disposals and write-offs (13) (20) (456) - (489)
B HMERR Currency translation differences - - (36) (73) (109)
ZO—REXRA=TERAE Cost at 30 June 2016 1,524 5433 15,444 2,395 24,796
—O—RFtA—BRBEAENEE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2015 (1,031) (3,060) (9,632) (1) (18,724)
REFEHE Depreciation for the year (11 (161)  (1,374) - (1,546)
BRI EYE Transfer to investment properties - 6 - - 6
BEREHE Disposals and write-offs 6 20 455 - 481
B HMERR Currency translation differences - - 25 - 25
ZO—RENA=THZRENERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2016 (1,036) (3,195) (10,526) (1) (14,758)
ZO—RNFEXNA=THEEFE Net book value at 30 June 2016 488 2,238 4,918 2,394 10,038
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13 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS UNDER

OPERATING LEASES

HEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
+tA—HKAE Cost at 1 July 1,339 1,436
B HmER Currency translation differences (19) (97
NA=TBERAE Cost at 30 June 1,320 1,339
+A—BREHH Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (162) (145)
RNF SR Amortisation for the year 27) (28)
B HRERR Currency translation differences 2 1

NA=THZEEH Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (187) (162)
NAZTHEEFE Net book value at 30 June 1,133 1,177
14 REYHE 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
+tA—HKAME Cost at 1 July 29 25
EEgET Transfer from buildings - 6
BRTHHEEEE Transfer to assets held for sale (6) -
B Disposals - @
ANAZTHEAE Cost at 30 June 23 29
+tA—HER®ENE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (28) (24)
EEaET Transfer from buildings - ®)
HBRETHFEEEE Transfer to assets held for sale 6 -
i Disposals - 2
ANA=ZTHERERE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (22) (28)

NA=TREEFE

REMEER _O—EFRA=ZTHRK
“O—ARFAA=TH ABUNAERERM
EAD [ R HT B ERT B AR QR | EITEH
HE - FIEREMEHUNEE - RERHAR
REMENRFEER/NE-_TEET(ZO
—RF R -FTEEET) -

Net book value at 30 June

1

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2017 and 2016 by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited. The investment properties are located
in Hong Kong. The fair value of the investment properties was HK$920 million (2016: HK$1,112

million) at the end of the reporting period.

RZO—tFHA  UBER—REFEZESIE In May 2017, the Finance and General Purposes Committee approved the disposal of two
MIBEREY - EARSEAAIR=0—t/—N\ investment properties. The transactions are expected to be completed in 2017/18. The investment
T c RZO—+tFRA=1+H ' ZMEBEREY properties and related property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2017 were reclassified to assets
ERBEDE  BRERBMEEFSEBAFRE  held for sale.

FEEE -

TERAMKREEFRXE D - LATFEBEFEMNR  The following table analyses the investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation
BYE - method.
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT.)

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements as at 30 June

2017 2016
BATAEE BATAEHR
BAZH BAZH
Significant Significant
unobservable unobservable
inputs inputs
BEBT in HK$ million @7 Level 3 7 Level 3
NEEEAE Fair value measurments
REYZE Investment properties
-FEED) - Residential (Hong Kong) 96 139
- HEED) - Commercial (Hong Kong) 824 973
NA=THKAE Cost at 30 June 920 1,112
REMENHATEE  BREBEIELBYELEE The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method

BTN ZTNEREE  AERLLEEEH
BE - BN FEOMANE LBELEEES
EARE R AR B2 - WFRE A YN
FRABE N RE - WA EEEE XTI -

FRIBHYEFZEBRNTABRBAZE - 2K
ARAUE  BERMTAREZERARZAENET
TIRMHER -
SENBEENEHERNEMRITRBCEE
BH BERATEESEMNNEAREL -
FRARMBOBERDLELE -
RZO—tFER-ZO—XF - ZARFEETE
Fp 2 EA IR E YR

whereby comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties have been
made. Comparable properties with similar character, location, size, etc are analysed and carefully
weighted against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the properties in order to arrive
at the fair comparison of values.

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking account
of location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

During the years of 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers of investment properties among the
three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.
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A - Stellar Performer Global Series([Bond
Trust)ETHIRE - B8EEFHKIC Equity
Trust Fund([Equity Trust]) r MEBEE 5%
A HKJC Investment Trust Fund([Investment
Trust]) °

RZO—tFRA=ZTHEALRRAFEWT -

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

During the year, the investments under Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”) were
transferred to HKJC Equity Trust Fund (“Equity Trust”), which was renamed as HKJC Investment
Trust Fund (“Investment Trust”).

Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2017 are as follows:

TETE AR R B BB AR
BEAH B/ MR FEEG Authorised and SEAA
Name of entity Place of business/country of incorporation Principal activities paid up capital Measurement
IR BEE EERMARAR REARLME(HE]) RMEEME - SifrEl AR G
China Sports Lottery HKJC The People’s Republic REEEMAARS “EBE-+ET Equity
Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd* of China (“PRC”) provision of computer technology, Renminbi (‘RMB”)
("“BJ CJV") technical training and business 200.2 million
information consultancy
HKJC Investment Trust Fund HESHS REREREBHES TEMA s
The Cayman Islands investment in equities n/a Equity
and debt securities
Stellar Performer Global Series HEeHE REGBBES & A Ea
The Cayman Islands investment in debt securities n/a Equity

RZO—+tFEXRA=Z+THER-ZO—R"FXA=ZT
A SESEIERTEEYESRITERARN
BEEERSBEDZNLT - R_O0O—tFKR=0
—AF - EEMEIERTPREBEEEERMTERA
RIMEE BB 2T -

RABR=Z+H &8 BehEAFWEEAE
Investment Trust % Bond Trust B #Z A H B
BOLT :

As at 30 June 2017 and 2016, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was 90%. The Group
shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2017 and 2016.

The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in the
Investment Trust and the Bond Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

Investment Trust Bond Trust
AHBT in HK$ million 2017 2016 2017 2016
ERESS The Hong Kong Jockey Club 48.1% 47.2% - 46.8%
BEEBRRXSETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 48.2% 48.3% - 49.9%
BERES B TRINEFEE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement
Benefits Scheme 3.7% 4.5% - 3.3%
100.0% 100.0% - 100.0%
EL-Y- 7 in HK$ million 2017 2016
+tH—H At 1 July 21,136 20,017
EE Injection 15,842 2,324
FE [ Redemption (12,508)  (1,198)
Frtis A/ (E518) Share of profits/(losses) 2,917 (550)
FriG Ef 2 E e Share of other comprehensive income - 564
B HER Currency translation differences 3 @1)
~NA=+H At 30 June 27,384 21,136

BEAFEELXSH  Bond Trustf N+ HIE
NTFZEEETHREURERESRE MK
BEEETRT T \B-_THEEETHRER
& - ¥EE T Investment Trust °

*IFETEXE

Significant non-cash transactions: Investments under Bond Trust of HK$8,592 million and equities
investments under Contingency Fund Investments and Long-term Investment portfolio of HK$2,825
million were transferred to Investment Trust.

* Unofficial English name



15 E¥AQTFREE) 15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

RIEAERATEENA=ZTHILNEERDEEX A summary of financial information of the joint ventures based on their management or audited

IRE MR BEERBENT - accounts as of 30 June was as follows:
2017
JERPERTER
BT ERAR Fak
BJ CJV Investment Trust Bond Trust Total
EEFEEH SEEBEH EKEEEH EEEBEH
EERES EEREEDL EREST ERADL
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective effective
BEET in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
ERES Income statement
Wk Income 255 102 5,217 2,568 728 327 6,200 2,997
T Expenses (176) (70) - - - - (176) (70)
e Depreciation (18) @ - - - - (18) @
F 2 Wz Interest income 6 2 - - - - 6 2
TIEZ Taxation expense (12) (5) - - - - (12) 5)
Mg Zgk Surplus after taxation 55 22 5,217 2,568 728 327 6,000 2,917
EHEN R EEE Total comprehensive income 55 22 5,217 2,568 728 327 6,000 2,917
BEEBER Balance sheet
IERBEE Non-current assets
Y - B R EEM Property, plant and equipment 67 46 - - - - 67 46
BEERIBEE Deferred tax asset 12 8 - - - - 12 8
BRATEEERE Fair value through profit or loss
wHIBRM BB E
ES Equities
EEB LT Listed in Hong Kong - - 5,011 2,503 - - 5,011 2,503
wEIN T Listed overseas - - 28,363 14,167 - - 28,363 14,167
BERES Debt securities
EgsNET Listed overseas - - 13,755 6,203 - - 13,755 6,203
LM Unlisted 9,225 4,201 - - 9,225 4,201
HFRENESD Funds awaiting investment - - 98 68 - - 98 68
TEemTA Derivative financial instruments - - 66 30 - - 66 30
MEVEE Current assets
B NEMBEIWRIE Trade and other receivables 142 97 - - - - 142 97
EARBIEE Other current asset 5 3 - - - - 5 3
TEemITA Derivative financial instruments - - 47 21 - - 47 21
EEATER Short-term deposits 259 177 - - - - 259 177
BekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 19 - - - - 28 19
MENEEME Total current assets 434 296 47 21 - - 481 317
mEEE Current liabilities
FERTBRFX M FBULGKIE  Creditors and receipts in advance (107) (73) - - - - (107) (73)
PTHEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (132) (59) - - (132) (59)
nBBEERE Total current financial liabilities - - (132) (59) - - (132) (59)
(TBIEESNHM  (excluding trade and other
FERTBRSRANER) payables and provisions)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
PTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - (60) 27) - - (60) (27)
406 277 56,373 27,107 - - 56,779 27,384
HRESRE Contingency Fund investments - - - 20,876 - - - 20,876
REREAHEA Long-term investment portfolios - - - 6,231 - - - 6,231
- - - 27,107 - - - 27,107
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2016
ERFEBREER
BT ERAR fek ]
BJ CJV Equity Trust Bond Trust Total
EMBHL EMBAL EEBAD EEBAL
ERAEDL EREDL BEEES BEREDL
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective EFalsd effective Bott effective Aotk effective
ABEET in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Wz Income statement
Wezs/ (B518) Income/(loss) 333 133 (641) (305) (650) (285) (958) (457)
S Expenses (195) (78) - - - - (195) (78)
e Depreciation (28) (11) - - - - (28) (11
F B U 25 Interest income 5 2 - - - - 5 2
BIEZ Taxation expense (15) ®) - - - - (15) ®)
BEie &/ (BIB)  Surplus/(deficit) after taxation 100 40 (641) (305) (650) 285  (1,191) (550)
Hthzm Other comprehensive
(B518) /M (loss)/income - - (135) (4) 1,247 568 1,112 564
2H Total comprehensive
Wezs/ (518 s income/(loss) 100 40 (776) (309) 597 283 (79) 14
BEAER Balance sheet
ERBNVE E Non-current assets
W - RAE R Property, plant and equipment 111 81 - - - - 111 81
BRI EE Deferred tax asset 24 17 - - - - 24 17
Al E B Available-for-sale financial
BERE assets Equities
EEBLT Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,316 621 - - 1,316 621
EgsNE™ Listed overseas - - 21,138 9,977 - - 21,138 9,977
BIHH Debt securities
Zeai=2e Niwil Listed overseas - - - - 16,327 7,634 16,327 7,634
LT Unlisted - - - - 4,628 2,169 4,628 2,169
MEFRENE S Funds awaiting investment - - 394 186 585 275 979 461
PTEemITA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 411 188 411 188
MENVEE Current assets
Hibmeh&E Other current asset 8 6 - - - - 8 6
PTESBMITA Derivative financial instruments - - 23 11 226 104 249 115
FEEIER Short-term deposits 223 163 - - - - 223 163
RERIBLEEY  Cash and cash equivalents 148 108 - - - - 148 108
MEBEERE Total current assets 379 277 23 11 226 104 628 392
mEAE Current liabilities
JENMBRZ N FBULFIE  Creditors and receipts in advance (161) (117) - - - - (161) (117)
PTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - (140) (65) (140) (65)
mE K aEEE Total current financial liabilities
(TBIEESRHEM  (excluding trade and other
FEATBR SR AN LEHE) payables and provisions) - - - - (140) (65) (140) (65)
ERBBELT Non-current liabilities
AeRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - (486) (222) (486) (222)
353 258 22,871 10,795 21,551 10,083 44,775 21,136
HBRESKE Contingency Fund investments - - - 7,726 - 5,499 - 13,225
RHIREEA Long-term investment portfolios - - - 3,069 - 4,584 - 7,653

- - - 10,795 - 10,083 - 20,878
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LN A Investment Trust ATt &S5
BEMEFHERINEREES 2 B (=
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15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rates of 6.2% for the joint ventures
under the Investment Trust (2016: 4.37% under the Bond Trust). Their weighted average maturities
were 5 years under the Investment Trust (2016: 7 years under the Bond Trust).

Investment Trust Bond Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
BETMRENTIEENE Underlying investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
EV United States Dollars (‘USD") 81% 67% - 100%
g Pound Sterling (“GBP") 5% 7% - -
BIT Hong Kong Dollars (“"HKD") 3% 7% - -
B 78 Euro ("EUR") 2% 2% - -
= Japanese Yen ("JPY") 1% - - -
BEEIE Korean Won (“KWR") - 3% - -
Hit & Other currencies 8% 14% - -
100% 100% - 100%
SEMNSERRMFAENITESRTA Group’s derivative financial instruments in joint ventures
Investment Trust
HERESKRE RKREHES
Contingency Fund  Long-term investment ‘g
investments portfolios Total
BE & BE aff BE afE
BEBT in HK$ million Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
REINES H) Foreign exchange forward contracts 10 (34) 5 17) 15 (51)
BmE Futures 4 (5) 2 () 6 )
s Swaps 20 (18) 10 ©) 30 @7)
—O—+EX~<A=+H At 30 June 2017 34 (57) 17 (29) 51 (86)
AITEAT - Analysed as:
REE D Current 14 (39) 7 (20) 21 (59)
FEMENE D Non-Current 20 (18) 10 ©)] 30 (27)
34 (57) 17 (29) 51 (86)
REIINES K Foreign exchange forward contracts - - 11 -
—O—XRFEXA=1H At 30 June 2016 - - 11 -
AT Analysed as:
mENER S Current 8 - 3 - 11 -
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15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

Bond Trust
REPREHEE
HRESKRE Long-term investment
Contingency Fund portfolios #2%E Total
BE afs BE afE BE afE
AEAT in HK$ million Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
—O—tFRA=+H At 30 June 2017 - - - - - -
RENES K Foreign exchange forward contracts 31 (21) 28 (18) 59 (39)
HE Futures 21 5) 20 5) 4 (10)
HAtE Options 1 (1) 1 (1) 2 )
=53 Swaps 96 (119) 94 (117) 190 (236)
—O—XRFXA=+H At 30 June 2016 149 (146) 143 (141) 292 (287)
DT - Analysed as:
MENER S Current 54 (34) 50 (31) 104 (65)
SERBNEB D Non-current 95 (112) 93 (110) 188 (222)
149 (146) 143 (141) 292 (287)

EF  SEALRTRECEERMERAFR
BHREMER —BNAT=B8ET -

SEESZARFANER Y EY REAIA
BfE -

In last year, the Group recorded dividend income of HK$283 million from BJ CJV.

There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.



16 EREERE 16 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS

BEAT in HK$ million 2017 2016
S Equities
ERA LT Listed in Hong Kong - 1,609
e/ T Listed overseas - 188
- 1,797
SRR A Alternative investments
LT Unlisted 6,237 5,298
BFIRENES Funds awaiting investment 30 56
LEZ N Deposits 1,845 371
8,112 7,522
EEMFENGTEROMELSERFEABS 22—  The deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 1.14% for the Group (2016:

—M(ZO—~"F : BOZZTEHEN) - £EF 0.79%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment approximated their
BHEARMEFIRENESNERBHEEE QAT  fair values. The weighted average maturities of deposits were 55 days for the Group (2016: 26
BEHRE  MEEMSEOFROMETDBRA  days).

F+HEB(ZO—XRF: =Z+/xH) -

BEET in HK$ million 2017 2016
HBRESREUTINEBIE Contingency Fund investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
Ey USD 94% 76%
BIT HKD 4% 22%
w7 EUR 2% 2%

100% 100%
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17 RERELAS 17 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS
ABET in HK$ million 2017 2016
S Equities
ERA LT Listed in Hong Kong - 626
e/ T Listed overseas - 73
L Unlisted - 44
- 743
BEI5E 5 Debt securities
HEHE LT Listed in Hong Kong - 4
FELEm Unlisted - 78
- 82
SHERE Alternative investments
LM Unlisted 1,900 2,427
1,900 3,252
EEFIRENES Funds awaiting investment 7 22
EZ Deposits 883 763
2,790 4,037

EEMENEEESFRTERNMEESTERA The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 1.21% for
RAFHSZ—UH——(ZO0—RE: B2 the Group (2016: 0.76%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
X)) FREMEEENESHEREERA approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the deposits were 62 days for
NFEEEE - MEEFEOFROMETSE  the Group (2016: 37 days).

BAERTZB(ZO—XRF: =++tH)-

BEET in HK$ million 2017 2016
REREHEEGU T EEITE - Long-term investment portfolios were denominated
in the following currencies:
e usD 94% 72%
BT HKD 6% 24%
AR RMB - 4%
100% 100%
18 REIFEMNRIE 18 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

RENZRIEFTEZRRERILRBEEESSHMER Long-term prepayments mainly included prepayments of rental for the land and property of Beijing
AR RMERMNNES - WERBIREH Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
T RYFEREE AR ERAESEEN - estimated useful lives.



19 BEMESHEE/(AE)

F AR A R — R i R A I A AR AR T

PRISHEE/(BE) BT -

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:

fEBRIK
TEFB A
Employee
RIEFIBE E Deferred tax assets retirement Hh “age
BEAT in HK$ million benefit cost Others Total
—O—~"FtA—H At 1 July 2016 165 9 174
AN TR Credited to income statement 11 4 15
e EmamEkes Charged to other comprehensive income (59) - (59)
ZO—tFRA=TH At 30 June 2017 117 13 130
—O—hFE+A—H At 1 July 2015 118 15 133
RA/nE)kEE Credited/(charged) to income statement 10 6) 4
AR 2 E S Credited to other comprehensive income 37 - 37
—O—XREXNA=FH At 30 June 2016 165 9 174
DnERHTEMBREE
Accelerated
EEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities depreciation Hith ‘g
BEHBT in HK$ million allowances Others Total
—O—~%tHA—H At 1 July 2016 (574) 21 (553)
(Ma)/mAMEE (Charged)/credited to income statement (67) 4 (63)
—O—+FRA=+H At 30 June 2017 (641) 25 (616)
—O—E4+A—H At 1 July 2015 (450) - (450)
(na)/ AR (Charged)/credited to income statement (124) 21 (103)
ZO—RFARAZ=TH At 30 June 2016 (574) 21 (553)
2017 2016
RIEFTTS IRIEFTTS IEEFRS RIEFR1S
HEE BaE REE BaE
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
income tax  income tax 4% incometax income tax 1aza
BEET in HK$ million assets liabilities Total assets liabilities Total
el /(K 84) B9 Deferred income tax to be
EEFSHL recovered/(settled)
ZRT @ A% after more than 12 months 71 (501) (430) 123 (441) (318)
R+=EAR within 12 months 59 (115) (56) 51 112) ©1)
130 616) (486) 174 (553) (379)
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20 EREFAS

20 DEBT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO

EEYu in HK$ million 2017 2016
B5E 5 Debt securities

ERA LT Listed in Hong Kong - 350

eI T Listed overseas - 157

- 507

R=O—7<% - REFFEHE SN IETY
BRFIE AT S 2 ==+ REBABNELS
HEOMEFHHRBTHAF -

BEETL

In 2016, the debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 3.27% and their
weighted average maturities were 0.5 year.

in HK$ million 2017 2016

RHREEAUTIIERING

AR
e

21 ESRHMEKRFIEUR
HtRBEE
211 ESREMEKRFIE

SEMNEZREMBRFETERD ZNH(Z
O—RF : AR ZET/N)AETFE - HERNU
Hig GBI E - &5 MEMEKRFUARREEER
BEHENTEERS

21.2 R EE

Long-term investment portfolios were denominated
in the following currencies:

RMB - 92%
uUSD - 8%
- 100%

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT
ASSETS

21.1 Trade and other receivables

80% of the trade and other receivables were denominated in HKD for the Group (2016: 76%), the
rest of the balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables approximated their fair values.

21.2 Other current assets

BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
LAy Inventories 245 221
TERFIR Prepayments 175 283

420 504




22 THEERMIA

22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BE af&
BEET in HK$ million Assets Liabilities
RERNES K Foreign exchange forward contracts 6 (5)
2 B Swaps - (42)
—O—+FAA=+H At 30 June 2017 6 47)
DT Analysed as:
mENE D Current 6 (29)
FEREE S Non-current - (18)
6 @7)
R ESNE S H) Foreign exchange forward contracts 14 (18)
=5 Swaps 1 (165)
—O—~FEAA=+H At 30 June 2016 15 (183)
DT Analysed as:
mENER S Current 15 (48)
IERBED Non-current - (135)
15 (183)

23 EHERRBEERRE
ZEY

23.1 BHER
EEMEHTERNINEFSBERNREESZZ
BEN(ZO—R"F BHZ2—HNN) - £E
WEBRFERNFEREERE AT EERS M
HENMETHERA-—E -+ =-H(Z0—~F :
—B=1HH)-

23 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS
23.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 2.06% for the Group
(2016: 1.89%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and
their weighted average maturities were 222 days for the Group (2016: 135 days).

2017 2016
REFEFUATIEEINE - Short-term deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:
BT HKD 49% 5%
AREE RMB 34% 35%
T usD 17% 60%
100% 100%

49
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23 EHERRBEERRAE
FEWR)

232 HERBELEEY
CEIHAA=EAUTHGEXONEFLHE
BRERAEHZ —BN=(—0—~E : BHZ
T4 c EWMERNEEEERLATEE
HE - MEMETHER AT+ —B(Z0—X
F:=-+ANH)-

23 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (CONT.)

23.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than three months
were 1.43% for the Group (2016: 0.75%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their
fair values and their weighted average maturities were 51 days for the Group (2016: 29 days).

2017 2016
FEHAA=RANTHFEFATYEETE - Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
BIT HKD 68% 68%
AR RMB 21% 18%
E usD 11% 14%
100% 100%

HEZO—tFRA=THI  FEETH
BRARAAETBERAKMNRTPOBARE MRS
SEPRE=RZENEEBET(ZO—RF
HR—FRBEEET)  UARBHHE - X+
BISMEE IR E ©

SENREMRSFEMRE_+RENAT=AE
BETHEEER(ZO—RF : ZTHNE
—TN\BEREL)  WERBREBRFENEE
B FHSHNRE25 -

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$308 million (2016:
HK$515 million) denominated in RMB which were held by certain subsidiaries with bank accounts
operating in the PRC where exchange controls apply.

Cash and cash equivalents included HK$2,583 million of customer funds for the Group (2016:
HK$2,418 million) that were matched by liabilities of an equal value as disclosed in note 25.



24 SHREF

BEAT

24 SHORT-TERM LOANS

in HK$ million 2017 2016

EIERER

AFEBTHER(ZO—ARF : |)AXNZ
PENEINFENZTHLTE-H_T(Z0
—NFE)IZENNE  MAT -AEETY
ER(ZO—RF: —E—T—BBETAEAX
NEEFNENTAED Z =8\ = B2~ R
(ZO—RF NFASZ=HN=ZEME )
ZENHME -

Unsecured loans 142 111

Loans of HK$50 million (2016: nil) were subject to floating interest rate between 0.70% and
1.20% per annum (2016: nil). Loans of HK$92 million (2016: HK$111 million) were subject to
fixed interest rate between 3.83% and 4.26% per annum (2016: between 3.83% and 4.92%
per annum).

BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016

EHERUTIIEENE Short-term loans were denominated in the following currencies:
AR RMB 65% 100%
BT HKD 35% -
100% 100%

FANEFMEXERABEET(ZO0—X
FLABET) -

25 E5KEAEMRK

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$5 million (2016: HK$7 million).

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
B D EMNERR Trade payables 5,955 5,114
HAb RN BRI R IERT 5 IE Other payables and accruals 1,022 1,108

6,977 6,222

SENESHRNERRE_TRENT=88
BTHEERFFR(ZO—XRF : Z+HE
—TNBERT) - WERREBEAERS LB
SEEVARRRENAFESES L 75
BNTEE23 - B 5 R MR AR FEAT IR
FREEEEEAQNFEERES - KENE S REM
R ERRRMEFFIBES BAD ZNATH(Z0
—RFAPZNTEINEBETHE - HBUE
EBFE

Trade payables included HK$2,583 million of customer accounts’ deposits for the Group (2016:
HK$2,418 million). This was offset by an equivalent amount of customer funds held which was
included in cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 23. The carrying amounts of the trade
and other payables and accruals approximated their fair values. 94% of the trade and other
payables and accruals were denominated in HKD for the Group (2016: 87%), the rest of the
balances were denominated in other currencies.
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26 RERMGE

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BEAT in HK$ million 2017 2016
Hih B ERIEERAMBRARAEHRD Other liabilities represented pension liabilities of the Group’s
SEATRIFERARSBERAT Scheme recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position which were determined as follows:
EIEEN A TER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,605) (2,507)
ARNERAREIRE Present value of obligation 3,182 3,378
REMBARRAERMYRKSFAE Net pension liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position 577 871
RERMNEIFFAEEENRELNRNT Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation was as follows:
+H—H At 1 July 3,378 3,405
MR E B H IR H BRI TR AR Current service cost net of employee contributions 133 137
FBRA Interest cost 26 49
BHIEE Remeasurement:
- B EEREEH 5| REEEE - Actuarial losses due to liability experience 24 36
- BB ERR eS| AR E () /EE - Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions (86) 42
- AAOREHREZZ B S| BHBE R E - Actuarial gains due to demographic assumptions - -
EREZHET Actual benefits paid (293) (291)
NA=THANNRKSIRE Present value of obligation at 30 June 3,182 3,378
FRABEEATEEZSHNAT : The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of
the year was as follows:
+tA—H At 1 July 2,507 2,825
I BUA Interest income 20 40
EHGEE Remeasurement:
- TR ENE RS/ (K)RITER - Return on Scheme assets greater/(less) than discount rate 296 (146)
1B Employer contributions 76 80
B 9 iE R Benefits paid (293) (291)
BitEIEERNITHREA Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets ) 1)
NRAZTHMNHEIEEATEE Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,605 2,507
HEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
R ERP ERERORIBRAT ¢ The amounts recognised in the income statement
were as follows:
BRI ARG R AN Current service cost 133 137
SERE R B EHFR ERR Net interest cost on net defined benefit liabilities 6 8
BEtEIEERNHITHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets 1 1
140 146




26 SERMETE(E)

BEAT

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

in HK$ million 2017 2016

EEmRaRERNETTEZENT

HeEEREE s BEERER

HE B ERREE) S| BB E (W) /B8
HAA PSR RREZE 5 R EE Wes
HINELEMBERE (Ka)/ B
AEEENER(S)/ERTRE
ErERERERNENTELE

Remeasurement effects recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income were as follows:

Actuarial losses due to liability experience 24 36
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions (86) 42

Actuarial gains due to demographic assumptions - -

Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities arising during period (62) 78

Return on Scheme assets (greater)/less than discount rate (296) 146

Remeasurement effects recognized in the

statement of comprehensive income (358) 224
ABEET in HK$ million 2017 2016
R ER K A E R (B EE11) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 11) 140 146
E2HEERRERNETFHETE Remeasurement effects recognized in the

statement of comprehensive income (358) 224
RERH (as)/BA Defined benefit (income)/cost (218) 370

(a) SREREFlat BI A9 45 B R G B o B 4 4t
REBMFABUKENRERFES - RUAEAR
R S BIRSBER R B RS F B R AT AT
o mERH-FBNENE - FUERMNEFET

HARHARBRES - SUERENEEIRE—AE
LB IEZED(H%%LW FH RG] B4R
SR - AR RATESETE (FR) R0 K
%EET?)Q?%‘EE?@E%\%E#% - BERZERTER
FEHEE—EE -

RIEA TR EMETRONBEIER - Sgnl
PR TERAGFENEG(E) @ URIERTERE
%I‘%IJF”EW}% CRIERBEEOHRK - &
It - BB S ERIE 1957 (2011) 5 64 BRFTEIAY
é?ﬂﬁ&éﬁ(l%ﬁ“i&%:ﬁ 2L EE)RE
FUAFHENREESE R WTERRAE
BFETE - RERFAGFT &M [NELKB TR
(M AERRQF]EE  Z e BEETRAER
I BIHERTA o

ER!

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum benefits based on a multiple of
a member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or
leaving service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees. The Scheme was established
under a trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORS0”), and is an exempted scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption)
Regulation. The Club is the sole employer participating in the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the surplus
of the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by the Scheme’s
actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum
funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme. The Scheme is
administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited who acts as the trustee to the
Scheme.
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26 AEBAGHEI(E)
(a) REFFFEINSHRIEBRERE L (E)
SeRARTEMNTEIMERINEZRBMT

(i) HE R
ERERHAES  RTEEFTEEENATFEE
B #mSERERAAaE/ EEME

B SUE RN M BARR B PINE - BREQER
ﬁ(fiiﬁiﬁﬁi‘ﬁ g SRS -

REBNWABNEERENBEFE2ERAS TR
wENZITRERS - BERE - EREFNK
Re HHESURZTEE - ZTILNEER
A RBED M - BBYDBSUERNIF EIRE MR
R

(i) R R E B
RERABIFTEAEETRBREMSESBRE
BEMW - TR RHE - EMBEFLERE T
% REBFFTBIFTAES TS 88 M -
(i) & EmE

FR A FLTE & TR T B A0 1& FI| B 5 & Ml - FTASRE
@ﬂﬁaﬁﬁragﬁﬂﬂﬁéaém%iﬁ
8o BEFSESESAS - TR 8 FT&
EE AR M-

(b) BT 1E FBASE R 2 I E

HiEE 26(a) TEFTIL - R BB ST ERIZE 195

@mn%m&%ﬁ%ﬁ?i@&éﬁl%%ﬁ
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k- i’:JTL}ﬂEA??IUEﬂ.#%J ﬁﬁLAﬁ/jﬂm‘f

HHFE R E R 2 o

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)
The Scheme typically expose the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of Scheme assets and therefore improve
the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit liability/asset, whilst poor
or negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income securities and
cash, hedge funds, and multi-assets covering major geographical locations around the world. The
diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce the concentration
of risk associated with the Scheme investments.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market bond yields. A decrease in the bond
yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk
The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the Scheme’s
benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 26 (a), determination of economic benefit available is not required because
the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements of
HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) REBFBIZENER (c) Scheme asset information

BEAT in HK$ million 2017 2016

FrEIEERIE Scheme assets were comprised as follows :
e Equities 1,353 52% 1,287 51%
EBEHLES Fixed income securities and cash 831 32% 775 31%
SRR Multi-assets 246 9% 116 5%
RS Hedge funds 194 7% 330 13%

2,624 100% 2,508 100%

RERMABRERBEEEDK  SEHHS
BHEE MR

The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club on a
regular basis.



26 SERMETE(E)

26 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(d) EABEBRR RGBT (d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
ERBEERAT The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2017 2016
PR Discount rate 1.2% 0.8%
REHFSERIE R Long-term salary increase rate 4.0% 4.0%

)‘5’\*0 THERA=TH  BRRELI/ K
DT _T - EEMABAERARGHFTT

xﬁ'ﬂ T FRERA Jrgﬂﬁﬁ??@)*ﬁfcﬁ'] N
fﬁ &R /i'jjﬂ a0l ﬁﬁ —HARED
—BE(ZO—RF: 5']2%§92*%ﬁt&
—BN)

RZO—tFA=+H8 EREFSLEA/T
E%ﬁ P2 BT EEMAAE R EERGER
BOBERT  REBFGEEIFAERTNHATF
F{E = i*ﬂu//mfl*“%lﬁﬁ siviet VAV E=]
gﬁt(_ /\i ERa) %E/\)"

(e) B2 R B F A

BRIRAREE &K E (REBRITERA BRKE
FIETEI THIRBITHAR) XERE - IRIEETE
T Wiﬂ’]f RRHERG S ABETHE
DLEE - FEMHKAE 2B (BERKEE
ﬂ%fﬁ‘JM’\J%ﬁ,m EEJr%IJ FEMMETESHEME
F o AFRAMFZER-_O—NEFE+HA—BET

—RESEE -

(f) a5
SEEFH O N\FHHFORETHAEBET
(ZO—+F : LFRESET) °

(9) REFF: B RIEEEHEHIER
ﬂi?%ﬂ?r%‘]Fﬁ%@%’ﬁ&éﬁ;’é:@-tiﬁﬂ
ZtTEMMEFARRA A _F(ZO0—7
i : ‘—\%/\i) Ti’%ﬁlJ%H;zE”E%iWE’JF"TEH

RRBERETHE - AR BN IR RN R
(BRI R RBEEREEHFEELNER )
VAE— SRR SRR AT BIPT A BB MBI
B e

At 30 June 2017, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.6% and 1.7%
respectively (2016: 1.7% and 1.8% respectively ).

At 30 June 2017, if long-term salary had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.8% and 1.7%
respectively (2016: 1.8%).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of the
Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage of basic
salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are determined with
reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the
ORSO requirements. The last funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 1 July 2016.

(f) Expected contributions

The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$74 million for the year 2018 (2017: HK$76
million).

(g) Maturity profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2017 was 6.2 years (2016: 6.6 years). To
further illustrate the maturity profile of the DBO, the following table sets out the expected benefit
payments (including benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary) from
the Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions.

AXNWERMNFR(ESET)
fh{EBERETER Number of years after valuation date Expected benefit payments in HK$ million
—F 1 356
—F 2 340
=% 3 332
s 4 310
hEF 5 236
RETHF 6to 10 1,306
T—FHALE 11 and over 1,555
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27 f##E

27 RESERVES

KRESE
=]
2B Investment [ 5 (s
Accumulated  revaluation  Exchange “age
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve reserve Total
—O—RFEtHA—H At 1 July 2016 22,331 570 (37) 22,864
BRI RS 2R E QS E L B FAEE Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 570 (570) - -
—O—R"FtA—BEIHFEE Restated reserves at 1 July 2016 22,901 - (37) 22,864
FRE1E B FRR AR Net surplus after taxation 1,210 - - 1,210
EETHERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (8,241) - - (8,241)
R HmER Currency translation differences - - (32) (32)
R ER BRI BT BN ENTTE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefits obligations, net of tax 299 - - 299
—O—tFXA=1H At 30 June 2017 16,169 - (69) 16,100
—O—RFtA—H At 1 July 2015 27,458 1,258 129 28,845
WRi5t 1% B0 F R 18 Net deficit after taxation (298) - - (298)
EETHERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (4,642) (624) - (5,266)
B AIGRETE Currency translation differences - - (166) (166)
AR EM A ENEHERE Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - (146) - (146)
A EM B EENE RRERS Realised gains on disposal and impairment
BEER B ERANGRR of available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement - (148) - (148)
- (294) - (294)
PRI MBI B A BB ERETE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (187) - - (187)
TG & & A RMEMEEKE Share of other comprehensive income
of joint ventures - 230 - 230
—O—XRFEXRA=1H At 30 June 2016 22,331 570 (87) 22,864

REARAREHRA - SEASEEAMES
BERMEFMNENRLBD Z TBANEERHBA
BE BEEZLABEWEHREINEMERANED
ZHtRIE - ZERBRAESEERERIE
& - ATAMARIERAHER  IBINEANSIETER -

RZO—tFRXA=+H ZEBARREER
EFABEEEL(ZO—RF : AEFHAEET) °

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from PRC entities as reported in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated losses, to

increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 2017, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$59 million (2016: HK$54 million).




28 HRES

28 CONTINGENCY FUND

RESE
b f#E
EEER  Investment
Fund revaluation ikl
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—X~FtA—H At 1 July 2016 18,731 2,016 20,747
BRI RS 2R E O E L B FAEE Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 2,016 (2,016) -
—O—R"FtA—BEIHFEE Restated reserves at 1 July 2016 20,747 - 20,747
R O Transfer from Reserve 8,241 - 8,241
—O—tFXA=1+H At 30 June 2017 28,988 - 28,988
—O—hFE+A—H At 1 July 2015 14,089 1,307 15,396
EEBRE Transfer from Reserve 4,642 624 5,266
A ENKEENEHAS Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets - 221 221
AR ENFEELE MRERD Realised gains on disposal and impairment of
BEBRWEEFOERAMER available-for-sale financial assets reclassified
to income statement - 470) 470)
- (249) (249)
FriE & & ARNEMEERE Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures - 334 334
—O—RFERNA=FH At 30 June 2016 18,731 2,016 20,747
20 BHEES 29 DEVELOPMENT FUND
A
hfEE
ESE  Investment
Fund revaluation ksl
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—RE+A—H At 1 July 2016 1,185 4 1,189
FANE B R ELERE O 1EL B Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 4 @ -
ZO—tFEAA=THK Restated reserves at 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2016
ZO—AR"FtA—BEVFE 1,189 - 1,189
—O—hRF+A—H At 1 July 2015 1,185 13 1,198
AR ENKEENEMHEBE Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets - (13) (13)
A S B B B Y Realised losses on disposal of available-for-sale
BERBEEFNSERAMER financial assets reclassified to income statement - 4 4
- ©) ©)
—O—XRFEXRA=1H At 30 June 2016 1,185 4 1,189

BRESWUBEE  BIARGKREA

ZA e

The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment portfolios.
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30 GEBEERERME 30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS
30.1 HIBRTIE AT 1Y B SR B & SR Eh FiT 30.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash generated
EENERESHER from operations

58

BT in HK$ million 2017 2016
MRTIIERT ) B gR Surplus before taxation 1,776 266
FHE &4 AR CaF)) /B8 Share of (profits)/losses of joint ventures (2,917) 550
BATEBEERBERYIRNIEEEF RS Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL (1,328) -
HEHEENBEENBH Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets - (55)
% B Es Dividend income - (93)
T Erzs Interest income (111) (187)
MBS Interest expense 5 7
eI AN FEE Net losses of derivative financial instruments - 215
HEREYERE Gain on disposal of investment properties - (179)
HEWE - BRE KM Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (41) -
W - BERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,689 1,546
BETH Assets write-offs 2 -
AR ENSEEERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets - 296
EEESH Movement in working capital
FEOEM /> (Increase)/decrease in inventories (24) 3
B 5 I o FEUGRIEE N Increase in trade and other receivables (10) (16)
TR SRIER L/ (180) Decrease/(increase) in prepayments 108 (137)
FERTBRFRIE AN Increase in creditors 823 331
FEWGRIRIG N Increase in receipts in advance 6 45
REATERTFRIEE N Increase in long-term prepayments (38) (14)
FRERFFHEIE N Increase in defined benefit scheme 64 67
Eh FETRRFRIE N Increase in other payables 3,223 -
EEEFFEENES Cash generated from operations 3,227 2,695

31 &g
31.1 EAEE

RERBPKR - BRI VZANERFLHEFNER
XHEA=THRETREBEL(ZO—XRF:

ZHETHESAT) -
31.2 HEARE

RAA=1+R - RETTEUHNEEBORTE
BRAXNNREESEBENT

31 COMMITMENTS
31.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period

amounted to HK$3,546 million (2016: HK$3,005 million).

31.2 Lease commitments

As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases were as follows:

BEET in HK$ million 2017 2016

BF Buildings
R—FA Within one year 71 99
RE_EZFERFNR In the second to fifth year inclusive 56 100
RERFE After the fifth year 19 25
146 224
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P 5 - WHRBIEEATE © 1o KE
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33 REREALZRS

MR EEEF RN A TAREIERESE:
A BRESSEENARSBARSERAT
NESEXNREERANEERHNE - FIAS
SRERES  BEEREEMNARRAANSE
RAFRES&XNREERAASHME -
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331 EEER

FR - KEBEHRITEREERS - REFTE
SHERERER - TLEEAET(ZO0—X
F:—RZE-_BEETL) -

33.2 BN FEAESHIRK
RERBR BN TFTERESOERA
“tHR=T=B88T  GWREBHAXN
MERLEER - BRETZEEBETESR
BYEAX(RY - Z=tHRE-_FT=BE8%
TCHIFIR - ERBEIRFENEXLIEMEZA -
RIBREAESOETHE - BRFIRGIZIE
BN TRANAICENONFRER - EHE
EXN - EEN FERESNER 2D - AP
=t—R-T=EEATIEERB A E - Fit
BARRR+ —EAREE - MESFRRFE
mBEE -

333 X EEEEFHM
EEBESOHESEREE  YHEEZSERY
B EERATATEENEBEEHHRE
HESMEBER  THRRTEMSERE T8
FEQRETHEMMNEE WIEERET -
ATHEESHMAMBNRELNES 52K
TEERENEEERREREES Y  TEES
S B BIETHER RS TEE(ZO—X
F L) HERAFR [EBEEE | 5 -
REEHEBHER - EENILDEEDMSE o 101
RENSEERYETREEEBEENTaSE
BRH - RH A DR EEFS o

ERZEEENEFANTHY A=

(a) EFX B2

EARHeREEATS BEREMERNEY
R

(b) EBR B B
EIEMESRIREARBMEBZERIBEMN -

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members
of both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The
Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the
Trustees of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the joint ventures and related
parties, except for those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements:

33.1 Management expenses

During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$117 million (2016: HK$102
million) to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

33.2 Payable to the Trust

At the end of the reporting period, payable to the Trust amounted to HK$3,433 million, which was
interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly included HK$3,423 million for the donation from
the Trust to West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA?) for the construction of the Hong
Kong Palace Museum, which will be settled based on payment by the Trust to WKCDA on a back-
to-back basis according to the mutual agreement with the Trust. Out of the payable to the Trust,
HK$3,223 million was classified as non-current liability as such amount was not repayable within
the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was classified as current liability.

33.3 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board
of Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group
and its funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group.
The Board of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is
overseen by the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in
Hong Kong, key management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management
which comprises the Chief Executive Officer, and nine Executive Directors (2016: ten), are detailed
on “Board of Management” section of the report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation
Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation

This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.
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33 HEEREATZRS () 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)

333 TEEEEHM(E) 33.3 Key management compensation (cont.)

(c) EtriEF (c) Retirement benefits

RREFEEEARERESHTES KRB RIKTE Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu
HEMLmNE - BT HELEE@EESE & of retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu
SEAHRERRNRBEE - EXFTIREREIRIK  of retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the

HEE R L IS BEEIRE R HIEE - contractual entitlement and date of payment.
BIREESEMEFTAMNEFMMOT : The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:
BEBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
YN Basic compensation 62 71
HRIBEMIEN © Performance-related compensation 32 30
IRURRER Retirement benefits 16 18
110 119
HENAR AT - The remuneration fell in the following bands:
N Number of individuals 2017 2016
AR Remuneration bands
4,000,001 B TIAT Below HK$4,000,001 1 1
5,000,001 % 7C £ 6,000,000,8 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 - 1
6,000,001 % 7T % 7,000,000 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 1 1
7,000,001 % 7T = 8,000,000,8 7T HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 2 3
8,000,001 8 7C £ 9,000,000,8 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 1 2
9,000,001 T2 10,000,000 7% 7T HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 3 3
10,000,001 %&£ 11,000,000,8 7T HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 1 -
12,000,001 7T = 13,000,000/8 7T HK$12,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 1 1
22,000,001 & T & 23,000,000 77T HK$22,000,001 to HK$23,000,000 - 1
24,000,001 77T = 25,000,000 7T HK$24,000,001 to HK$25,000,000 1 -
1 13
BHSENIZEERENKE Key management who left the Club 1 2

10 11
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

34.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk),
liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and
reduce certain risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external
professional fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment
policies and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes
Committee. Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-
specific restrictions and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund to
control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD is
pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The majority
of RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operational
requirements in the PRC. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified
investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2017 2016
FRRBIE FARRBIR
B RS BN
/G ) #n/Caid)
HEEIE TS Increase/ HEEEIRTS Increase/
ERpad:ol=Ed (decrease) BOLLREE (decrease)
s /4855 on post-tax 0% /655 on post-tax
If currency surplus and If currency surplus and
strengthened/ equity for strengthened/ equity for
EL-Yon in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year
AREE RMB 5% 44/(44) 5% 90/(90)
B 7 EUR 5% 20/(20) 5% 2/(2)
HgE GBP 5% 10/(10) 5% 1/(1)
H JPY 5% 9/(9) 5% (6)/6
BT AUD 5% - 5% -



62

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRSP EE

34 IR EE(E)

341 BIEREBEE(E)

(a) TS EE ()

(i) RE/HRER

XT1mmuEh-km1m“aﬁaﬁ@@
o MRIREBE TS - @SRERENERE

TM %u%s%%%%%@%@ﬁoﬁg&ﬁ

SO BN E NI AR A FBES BB

ERMBTAEET

REWRIK - EXEEBER TENER EH/
THESZAH EEMﬁﬁﬁTk%ﬁ%ﬁ%T@
E’J\ AT RENREREEARERENR FH“TE
%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂu/ﬁ NEARFNEEET(ZO
CNEATREEET) °
(iii) T = =Bz
ﬂTHMEhIm%ﬁT“Eﬁ%ﬁ%EWH
% b=} $f‘i1ﬁﬂrﬂ M&Iii//mgﬂrﬂ
b - E%“Eﬂ@@tl‘ﬁ%?‘é‘ﬁ%ﬂ? 2% - 5%
M EEERREHEMR o 3RS EERA
EMSENEEY  sIBMBEERERREN
TREH AR - AREEEEARNGERRE - T
NRIKAZZERXNTHEERRSREF EER

WK ARFIREERELT - BFRGN
‘T‘EES EEMAAAEAREBRFIEL
FAT  KREFRNNKRTIERG IIER S TR
1_73%%,%71(7 —RNEFE:—EBARTN\EE

HBIT) °

SEBEARBEEESEMRESRENRER
% BETSRAR - ERERBBREEIFET/
%ﬁ/)\ﬁﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ%lﬂl‘ﬁ%bﬂﬁ%ﬂ SERERM
EBPFEEMSIBNEERER - T2E B
EHRAOMARBHENERETER - ENMK
SERER - AEERMETENESENES
7T:1t BREBR 5 AR EAE T AORUE o R R @R T5

BB BHRI EEHRIESI RRERZENE
5&@ T AR o

(b) REE LR

//Ihgﬂgiﬂ fax 2 aiﬁﬁ§§7ﬁ53/£1ﬁ1—f ‘Jgﬂﬂi‘
FrAdEr AR o ttoh - RE IR EAN A B A
NEE A FRENBRBTHEEZR -

RERBERANESHENEER  RARNIEEE
SERENEE - RERD R MRS KA E

BERES  TEZRENERHOSRITSE R
TH-

SETEBEMTFRE NEREEES - #1717

HEHRERENT - BERBDELRER - R
AENMAIHEBRIEMANESTK -

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These

investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5%
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$868 million (2016: HK$695 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of its
equity investment.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can be
further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial asset will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value
and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax surplus and equity for the year would have been HK$120 million lower (2016:
HK$168 million).

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s China operations is
managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Equity price
risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities.
Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a
spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as
they fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close
to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group as
at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates.

The amounts disclosed in the table below were the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2017 2016
={&A ={EA =f@A =EAK
AT rtE—F AT rE—F
Upto >3 months —FUE k) Upto >3 months —FE “age
AEET in HK$ million 3 months to 1year Over1year Total 3 months to1year Over1year Total
T RE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
RHIE N Short-term loans 142 - - 142 111 - - 111
FERTRRFR Creditors 6,447 457 3,300 10,204 5,630 503 - 6,133
PURFREA LB R Net-settled derivative
PTEMTBEE financial liabilities 6 3 69 78 28 18 387 433
6,595 460 3,369 10,424 5,769 521 387 6,677

RZO—+t&EXA=+H SEMFEN
AFPREHIIEGHNRRAERBEAER
M+—FBEtTEtASET(ZO0—RF:
NTHE-FT-B8ET) - TREKEE=E—
O—tFRA=ZTHRIER-ZO—RFRA=1H
LERRF 2R HSNEA DIFH DT - BLEHE
RGHEEE - WIRHR T AN A S BRI
RAR - TRABRBENFERSNATRASR
8 BEEMBARRKRAIMEEEERCGITNE)
TR -

As at 30 June 2017, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Group was HK$4,177 million (2016: HK$8,412 million). The table below
analyses the Group’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2017
and 2016 that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their
remaining contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table were contractual
undiscounted cash flows, which were different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in

the consolidated statements of financial position.

2017 2016

=EA =EAL =f@A =EAA

AT FE—F AT tE—F
Upto >3 months —FUE k) Upto >3 months —FE “age
AEET in HK$ million 3 months to 1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over1year Total

REIINES K Foreign exchange
forward contracts

D] Outflows (3,683) (493) M @177 (7,596) (746) (70) (8,412)
mA Inflows 3,649 492 1 4,142 7,623 746 70 8,439
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets at amortised costs (such as
trade and other receivables, deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment)
were due.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment are only
placed with financial institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to the credit risk representing the carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost recognised in the consolidated statements of
financial position less the amount of cash on hand as defined in note 2.10.

As at 30 June 2017, trade and other receivables that were past due but not impaired were HK$7
million (2016: HK$21 million). The overall impact of impairment of these receivables on the
consolidated financial statements is considered by management. Management considered the
lifetime expected loss amount with respect to these receivables as minimal as at 30 June 2017
and the Group made no write-offs or provision for these receivables during the year.

34.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to

— provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and

— support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its consolidated
statement of financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community
in the form of donations through the Trust.

34.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and
liabilities, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes
from market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most
significant input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following tables present the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that were measured
at fair value as at 30 June. See note 14 for disclosures of fair value measurement of the
investment properties.

2017 2016
HA0A &5l 2 ®5I3 e BRI HAl2 73 “agE
BEAT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
ERESEE Contingency Fund
investments
i€ Equities - - - - 1,797 - - 1,797
BHRIEE Alternative investments - - 6,237 6,237 - - 5,298 5,298
REIREWHRE Long-term investment
portfolios
€S Equities - - - - 699 - 44 743
BEE Debt securities - - - - 82 - - 82
SERE Alternative investments - - 1,900 1,900 - - 2,427 2,427
BB HEE Debt securities portfolio
ERES Debt securities - - - - 507 - - 507
HAbig & Other investments
PTESRIA Derivative financial
instruments - 41) - (41) - (168) - (168)
- 41) 8,137 8,096 3,085 (168) 7,769 10,686

SENBERENEREROEHRERBCEE
ER - BRAFEEEABNEARES -

RZO—tFR-_O0O—XF  KEE=HATE

B BRI TR -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years of 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the Group.
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Bk MRt
34 BiHERER(E) 34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
34.3 N EEEMT (&) 34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)
(b) RIERBISHHRETELAFEENEEELER (b) The movements of the Group’s balance of the assets and liabilities measured at fair value
BEZGEEHNT : based on Level 3 were as follows:
BHEHBT in HK$ million 2017 2016
+tA—H At 1 July 7,769 6,262
AT R R 542 %E Total gains recognised in
sk Income statement 583 127
2HNER Statement of comprehensive income - (48)
BA Purchases 2,326 1,789
e Sales (2,541) (361)
~NA=1H At 30 June 8,137 7,769
FRFAAMGERIINEBFRE R Total gains for the year included in income statement and
RIS EHEE BB G LERE presented in surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 583 127
EMPRFENEERBERF AT AN GE Total gains for the year included in income statement
WHIERHIRE R RN EHE BHD for assets and liabilities held at the end of the
Ryt reporting period and presented in surplus from securities
investments and long-term investment portfolios 547 -
() =O—tEARNA=1+HR=ZO—XNEXA (c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements within Level 2 as at
=1H - SERF 2 A FEEREFHE 30 June 2017 and 2016 were as follows:
BERITREASEHAT :
ocpi] HERT FRBALZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
s EE/ BB
Financial assets/liabilities
EHIEREH TRBERE R =
Forward contracts on bonds Discounted cash flow Discount rate
RHIIMES &Y THRBReRE AR IE %
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
HARE MO AR AT E EEX FEXR - FIE KRR
Options Black-Scholes model Exchange rates, interest rates and volatility levels
12 5 FRBERE AIERERME R « R Rig HiX
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates, interest rates and

swap rates
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
within Level 3 as at 30 June 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

bl fH{ERKRDT ERBEBREAZH 8 E (e F19)

Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)

s EE/ B

Financial assets/liabilities
BHEESRE BEFE" TEA TiE A
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
LEREESKRE BEFE NiE A NiE A
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HPERIRE BEFE N E A EA
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
STEERE BEFE ™EA ™EA
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

¥ EERPISERINREIN IR RTISE
TEE  WERENBEDNRESESEIEMR
RIMENESHERCEZRENERRE
FENEEHBABEAEMET - KERRMA
EREEFERZERENQFEE -

(e R=O—tFANA=T+HR=O—ANFEXA

StRAYEFUBEEXCBELURFEE
SR -

The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an
active market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund
reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other
relevant factors if deemed necessary. The Group has determined that the reported net asset
values represent a fair value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2017 and 2016, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried at fair value.
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35 FEUBURRRRMEEED

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB
BEMBMRRE Statement of financial position of the Club
BEET in HK$ million FfizF Note 2017 2016
EMEEE Non-current assets
Y - BB R EEM Property, plant and equipment 8.738 8,084
KEWE Investment properties 1 1
NGBS Investments in subsidiaries 1,117 1,117
AENRIRA Investments in joint ventures 19,120 15,787
HRESIRE Contingency Fund investments 8,112 7,522
REPREHEE Long-term investment portfolios 2,042 2,789
REATE IE Long-term prepayment 23 67
39,153 35,367
mEEE Current assets
BEEHES Debt securities portfolio - 507
FsFE&E Assets held for sale 1 -
B A RIFTYERV B R Loans to subsidiaries 1,681 1,676
E 5 R E A WG IE Trade and other receivables 274 272
Ef BN EE Other current assets 303 239
JEUS B BT R B R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,786 2,050
PTHEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments 5 13
PSEEEA Short-term deposits 1,109 1,966
RERBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 3,522 4,012
9,681 10,735
Vi IN=N Current liabilities
E 5 REAMERERRK Trade and other payables (4,690) (4,233)
TEWGRIE Receipts in advance (144) (111
FENT T B A RIAFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (5,698) (5,482)
REFEHEE Current income tax liabilities (93) (46)
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 5) (16)
(10,630) (9,888)
wE(BE)/ EEFE Net current (liabilities)/assets (949) 847
FEREEE Non-current liabilities
RIEFFISHBE Deferred income tax liabilities (421) (308)
RERAEE Defined benefit scheme (577) 871)
TEURIE Receipts in advance (645) -
E A ERTARR Other payables (3,223) -
(4,866) (1,179)
33,338 35,035
it Reserves 35 (a) 9,608 17,278
HRES Contingency Fund 35 (b) 23,730 17,757
A Total equity 33,338 35,035
== Simon SO Ip
®EHR Anthony W K Chow
AxE Stewards
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

(#&) MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB (CONT.)
(a) GEFELE (a) Reserve movement of the Club
RE
EYi Investment
Accumulated revaluation 158
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
—O—~"&+A—A At 1 July 2016 17,264 14 17,278
FNE B ELERE OSREL R Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 14 (14) -
ZO—R"FEA—BEFEE Restated reserves at 1 July 2016 17,278 - 17,278
MR 1E ) FEEE1E Net deficit after taxation (1,996) - (1,996)
HEETERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (5,973) - (5,973)
R E BRI BN BN ENTTE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligation, net of tax 299 - 299
—O—+tFXRA=FH At 30 June 2017 9,608 - 9,608
—O—hRF+A—H At 1 July 2015 20,306 805 21,111
MREE R FRERR Net surplus after taxation 2,157 - 2,157
ERTERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (5,012) (624) (5,636)
A ENBEENEHER Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - (146) (146)
AR ENFEELE MRERS Realised gains on disposal and impairment
BEBRN ST ERAMNER of available-for-sale reclassified
to income statement - (21) (21)
- (167) (167)
REERBEB A BRI BB ERTE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax (187) - (187)
—O—R"FEARA=FH At 30 June 2016 17,264 14 17,278
(b) GEBHELEE (b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club
BESHHE
RIERE Investment
Accumulated revaluation “agE
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
—O—RE+A—H At 1 July 2016 16,918 839 17,757
BRI S MELERE QSR IE L AR Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 839 (839) -
—O—XREFE+A—BEVIRHE Restated reserves at 1 July 2016 17,757 - 17,757
R AR Transfer from Reserve 5,973 - 5,973
—O—tFXA=+H At 30 June 2017 23,730 - 23,730
—O—hFE+A—H At 1 July 2015 11,906 464 12,370
ERaRE Transfer from Reserve 5,012 624 5,636
AL ENEEAENEHAR Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets - 221 221
AR ENKEELE MRERD Realised gains on disposal and impairment
BEBRWREFHERANGER of available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to income statement - (470) (470)
- (249) (249)
—O—XREXNA=TH At 30 June 2016 16,918 839 17,757
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Rupr S B

VNG| SUBSIDIARIES
RZO—+FNA=1+H E2TENEAR
BIE

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2017:

SERENEERESL
Effective percentage

ERIRMERA/EMEE held by the Club
FEEK Issued and fully paid up Hi B3
Principal activities share capital / registered capital Directly Indirectly
EEGSEEREYERAT RERFEVER BT
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000 100
EESERHBELERAR 1R BRI ETS =BT
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000 100
EEEGRSERAF BERNARESER —BBET
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000 100
EEeeBEBARAA" BEERR Y ENRHERERE
The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited manages Members’ social and —EAT
recreational facilities HK$100 100
EREFE(RE)ERAR" ERBE TRINEFIFEINEEA
The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as administrator for staff —+E&T
(Managers) Limited retirement benefits scheme HK$20 100
HREERAA BEERRRINEY —FT&8ET
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages the Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000 100
PSS HERERAT BREREBREARAATLABNLS
The Racing Club Horse Management Limited manages the HKJC Racing Club —BET
Limited’s horse related activities HK$10,000 100
ERFGEBARABRAR W M5 E B —{EET
HKJC Business Ventures Limited inactive HK$100,000,000 100
EEFGERBAR(TE)ARAR ESZEESEICUAE 3 ¢4
HKJC Business Ventures (China) Limited holds the equity interests of the AEET
Group’s business ventures in China HK$500,000,000 100
EHEEE(EZ)ERLA" REBEESSETHEREAENREAR
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited BEILREESESMARAFMNIEE
acts as nominee for selected projects
and holds investments in Beijing Hong
Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited,
on behalf of The Hong Kong Jockey Club - 100
IREEESSMARAR BERERSERHERERE
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited* manages Members’ social and ANTHEEET
recreational facilities US$65,000,000 100
IREEEGRMBAERR AR TR e BB 1 R R M ) RT3 25 N R s AR TS
Beijing HKJC Technology Development Limited* provides computer hardware and
software technology development —FEET
and consulting services US$10,000,000 100
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONT.)

SERENERESL
Effective percentage
BB R RA/ AR held by the Club
FEXEG Issued and fully paid up =83 B3
Principal activities share capital / registered capital Directly Indirectly
BMEESSEGIIRERAA FE b B R 45 8 5 TC I AR AR Bt
Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training Limited*  constructs and operates horse ARE+HEARTFET
training facilities in Conghua RMB1,760,000,000 100
ANBEEHSRMAERRAA R BGRB8 R 7 AR TS
Shenzhen HKJC Technology Development Limited* provides computer hardware and
software technology development —HEBET
and consulting services US$3,000,000 100

RERRBEAFRABPAL  FENESFITRA
HETSEETHBRARMNES - EETXH
BARMEMESEIE - BRIALE - ARXE
A EEREE  BBRELT  EZBEL E
KE+ - KRMGEE - ARAMEE - TEWm
Sod - RZANGAE BB LAE - BEHLLE
(HZO—A~E+—A-+hHABRL) it
(H=ZO—"~"F+—A=-+hHAR)  ZRERLE
(HZO—+F=A+tH#) BExLhE(n=
O—tFMAZ+NHRE) BEFZE(H=O
—tFRAZAR) BREELLE(AEE=O0O—RX
F+4+—H -+ HH) K Martin Thomas Purbrick
FE(EE-O—+tE=A+R)-

Y FETEXA
' EEATNA

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Stewards are also directors in certain
subsidiaries of the Club. Other directors of the Club’s subsidiaries include: Mr Winfried
Engelbrecht-Bresges, Mr Chow Ding Man, Mr Christoph Ganswindt, Dr Gene W W Tsoi, Dr
George Mok Yuen Chee, Ms Gloria Y M Wong, Mr Herbert Tsoi Hak Kong, Mr Julian Chow Kai
Wo, Mr Lee Hock Ee, Mr Richard C K Cheung, Mr Anthony Brian Kelly, Ms Philana Wai Yin Poon
(from 25 November 2016), Mr Brian Ho Kit Yu (from 25 November 2016), Mr Andrew Juen-yi Wu
(from 7 March 2017), Mr Andrew Charles Harding (from 28 April 2017), Ms Scarlette Kwai Fong
Leung (from 2 May 2017), Mr Kim K W Mak (until 25 November 2016) and Mr Martin Thomas
Purbrick (until 7 March 2017).

* Unofficial English name

* Unofficial Chinese name
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PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR FULL RACING SEASON

BEZESEHRSWER

HEBT in HK$ million 2017+ 2016*
BN HEE Number of race meetings 88 83
BRI TR Amounts wagered by local customers 211,657 198,008
EEFE EEIRIMO TR Amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners 6,505 3,477
R Total amounts wagered 218,162 201,485
B R EHA Betting and lottery revenue 34,114 32,474
ERH KBS E R Betting and lottery duty (21,347) (20,222)
R TF I B SHE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (70) (47)
BHES Lotteries Fund (1,202) (1,282)
HA RAe Net margin and commission 11,495 10,923
H WA Other revenue 3,283 3,325
14,778 14,248
KRR Operating costs (9,987) (9,627)
BB TERERNIIE Donations to the Trust (7,323) (3,500)
MBREIBEAESTBENKEL (BR)/ B Operating (deficit)/surplus after donations to the Trust (2,532) 1,121
TR B as Interest income from deposits 111 109
BHERAMRBREAENEL/ (BE) Surplus/(deficit) from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 355 878)
HRESKRENER/(EE) Surplus/(deficit) from Contingency Fund investments 973 (67)
WMEER Finance costs (5) @
1,434 (343)
Fiih& &R EmF/ () Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures 2,917 (550)
MRTIIE R B8R Surplus before taxation 1,819 228
el Taxation (571) (559)
BEERFBERR/ (BE) Net surplus/(deficit) after taxation 1,248 (331)

* B2HET AWM -

* Refer to note 1 on page 17.




SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

EBBE
EEBETEEE THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
EERRIERIE RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES
BEBT in HK$ million 2017* 2016* 2015* 2014* 2013*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 88 83 83 83 83
KR RSN T A Amount wagered by local

customers on horse races 110,951 102,665 105,281 101,818 93,956
A BEFIEEFK E XEN Horse race betting dividends and

rebates on local bets (92,999) (86,026) (88,419) (85,656) (78,797)
R BEHIERA Horse race betting revenue on local bets 17,952 16,639 16,862 16,162 15,159
T BEFIERH Horse race betting duty on local bets (13,105) (12,134) (12,300) (11,783) (11,045)
AR TR T IMD B S S Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong on local bets (70) 47) 49) (36) (26)
AR B HBIERALF Horse race betting net margin on local bets 4,777 4,458 4,513 4,343 4,088
R EEEE Amount wagered on football 92,692 86,795 78,249 62,197 50,606
RHERES Football betting dividends (80,217) (74,892) (67,061) (52,435) (42,193)
RIKIERMA Football betting revenue 12,475 11,903 11,188 9,762 8,413
RIRIEFA Football betting duty (6,238) (5,951) (5,594) (4,881) (4,207)
RIKIER AT Football betting net margin 6,237 5952 5594 4,881 4,206
EESIRT TR Amount wagered on lottery 8,014 8548 7,780 7,910 7,627
HHES Lottery prizes (4,327) (4,616) (4,201) (4,271) (4,119)
HEEIA Lottery revenue 3,687 3,932 3579 3639 3,508
BEAIERA Lottery duty (2,004) (2,137) (1,945) (1,977) (1,906)
HEEe Lotteries Fund (1,202) (1,282) (1,167) (1,187) (1,144)
-2 ik Lottery commission 481 513 467 475 458
H A FUWA (FIRR HE YW E) Other net revenue

(excluding gain on sale of properties) 1,683 1,515 1,472 1,269 1,210
PRI Total operating income 13,178 12,438 12,046 10,968 9,962
HEEERE Direct operating costs (6,758) (6,474) (6,132) (5,765) (5,424)
MIBBER Miscellaneous donations (44) (29) (60) (91) (118)
e - i REREEZE Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (1,580) (1,493) (1,202) (1,074) (890)
AEE AR Total operating costs (8,382) (7,996) (7,394) (6,930) (6,432)
KRR Operating surplus 4,796 4,442 4652 4,038 3,530
BE Taxation (558)  (538)  (522)  (704)  (416)
MBRRIBRACE RRR Operating surplus after taxation 4,238 3,904 4,130 3,334 3,114
BASZEVANBERERS Unclaimed prizes transferred to

the Snowball Pool 67 108 75 77 61

FRHFRIBENRHRIRRIAL KRG BIBETE
T HEVHEEE  REDNKMERTEAES
NERETRINE LR

* 2FESUHER -

The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to the
Trust, gain on sale of properties, investment returns and transfer to Contingency Fund and

Development Fund.

* Financial data is for full seasons.



74

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
ES AT

ERESEEE THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
EERROTRIE(E) RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES (CONT.)
HEBT in HK$ million 2017+ 2016* 2015 2014 2013
ERERIETRE Total amount wagered on horse races 117,456 106,142 107,925 101,970 93,956
B EENEEENBERIEIRIMOEAE Less: amount of non-local bets placed by

commingling partners on horse races (6,505) (3,477) (2,644) (152) -
AR ES BT AR Amount wagered by

local customers on horse races 110,951 102,665 105,281 101,818 93,956
EFSEEEKERAT THE JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP SERVICES LIMITED
SERIE MEMBERSHIP FACILITIES
BEBT in HK$ million 2017* 2016 2015* 2014* 2013*
e Income
2EgE Membership subscriptions 292 282 263 253 233
CEACEBREHELERE Members’ entrance and qualification fees 111 114 104 106 130
BHREBEE Catering deficit (52) C3)) @7 @37) (30)
H 3B R E B Other non-catering income 43 45 50 46 44

394 400 390 368 377
CEEBERTHEZE Direct membership administration costs (331) (309) (305) (284) (284)
WEREELZH Depreciation and expensed project costs (64) (66) (76) (80) (88)
(395) (375  (381)  (364)  (372)

K (E18)/ B Operating (deficit)/surplus ) 25 9 4 5
Bis A/ (F518) Financial surplus/(deficit) 127 (188) 40 52 51
BRI AT RS/ (E18) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 126 (163) 49 56 56

EEECEEBERAFDAILMXIENEL -
B B2 RSN AR I S i & P T TR R i
EONRRR - STESRTAMNFRENTEE
T ZO—REF: FBEE— AT _BSET)
RNENEEHE NN FEEZS  YEBE
FEENRNPBEE -

RZO—tFRA=1TH BEESEEH
BERABFEERTNAEBATNBEREL(Z
O—RE T\ EFLtTHAEETL) B
ME - RERSVEEAT-_BEET(Z
O—RF  ZB=FT=ZB&8HAT)  REK
BEHALtENTNBEBLT(ZO—REF
ToEETFNANBEEL)  ERBENFKE
REOMTREEETL(ZO—RF &) U
MRBEENELT —BEET(ZO0—RX
FEBATEHESEL)  HEFRDAE
—TFTNEEREL(ZO—XRF : —B=FT<EE
Br)RRBaE=EETEEIT(ZO—XRF
“REATHEEET) -

* RFHMBER -

The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited entered into interest rate swap contracts with
the objective of hedging against the interest rate exposure of a loan drawn for funding of the
Happy Valley Clubhouse extension. Net gains of derivative financial instruments of HK$90
million were incurred (2016: net losses HK$192 million), representing change in the fair value
of these interest rate swap contracts, and were included in the financial deficit during the year.

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2017 were HK$1,998
million (2016: HK$1,874 million), including property, plant and equipment of HK$492 million (2016:
HK$232 million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$748 million (2016: HK$1,248 million), non-
current prepayments of HK$645 million (2016: nil) and current assets of HK$471 million (2016:
HK$784 million), less non-current liabilities of HK$18 million (2016: HK$136 million ) and current

liabilities of HK$340 million (2016: HK$254 million).

* Financial data is for full seasons.



STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BETBFHME
3 RACING
2017+ 2016* 2015* 2014 2013*

EFHAEE Race meetings
ABIRE Day meetings 46 48 47 45 46
REIRE Night meetings 42 35 36 38 37
IR Total number of meetings 88 83 83 83 83
EHBEFHH Races on turf 704 701 675 683 689
2RIEBESISE Races on all-weather track 102 83 102 88 80
IS8 Total number of races 806 784 777 771 769
B Horses
U B AR B Total runners 10,003 9,840 9,755 9,627 9,653
B —5E=FTHAE Horses winning 1 race 314 302 300 269 276
BHmSEESETHA Horses winning 2 races 144 134 129 132 132
BH=5EEF A Horses winning 3 races 38 47 44 54 60
B =150 EEERICEE Horses winning over 3 races 21 17 20 18 11
BHEESCHA Horses with winnings 517 500 493 473 479
REBHBATERALEFCEE Horses not winning — placed 399 419 408 428 425
REBLBESTEBRAMESCEAR Horses not winning — unplaced 359 387 380 371 379
AREHESHAE Horses not raced 321 305 305 318 301
BUT4ag Total horse population 1,596 1,611 1,586 1,590 1,584
RIGHIT Retirements 447 444 398 440 444
BERS Prize money
ReBE(BEAT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,140 1,064 982 890 858
FH¥HES (FERT) Average prize money per race (HK$’000) 1,415 1357 1,264 1,154 1,115
BILHHHEES(TET) Average prize money per horse (HK$’000) 714 660 619 560 541
FREHREESHLEHETAKE DL Percentage of horses winning

prize money in the year 62% 61% 62% 62% 61%
FAERESRSFIMEEBEFTAHAD L Percentage of individual runners

winning prize money in the year 77% 75% 76% 7% 75%
FARBEAEFSEAYIELREFCADIL Percentage of horses recovering

basic costs or more in the year 37% 37% 36% 35% 38%
EFHFEHAZAB(T) Average attendance per meeting (‘000)
Fiohespaid Happy Valley 18.1 18.1 17.7 18.2 18.1
W Sha Tin 29.6 29.3 29.3 28.4 29.6
ERFRIE(EEER) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
EEM Standard bets 101,517 91,204 92,730 88,301 81,427
FERIF Exotic bets 15,163 14,149 14,286 12,737 11,796
Eha=E Fixed odds bets 776 789 909 932 733
ekl Total 117,456 106,142 107,925 101,970 93,956

* Racing statistical data is for full seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BATHTFHME
Mg FINANCIAL
BHEBET in HK$ million 2017+ 2016* 2015* 2014 2013*
B EBBFBIR Payments of duty and taxation to

Hong Kong Government
ESEEH Horse race betting duty 13,105 12,134 12,300 11,783 11,045
RIKIEREL Football betting duty 6,238 5951 5594 4881 4,207
BAIEEH Lottery duty 2,004 2,137 1,945 1,977 1,906
MEH Profits tax 544 528 518 707 417

21,891 20,750 20,357 19,348 17,575

MU BIEEBARS Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*

to The Chest of Hong Kong 2 2 2 2 2

P REBIE - NWN=FNA—BERE - FER
BERSERRERRENTSNGERRE)
Pae RETFE-_OO0=F=A=+—
B HEREHE_O—-N\F=A=+—AH-

* Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate
sums equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest
of Hong Kong for ten years up to 31 March 20083, subsequently extended to 31 March 2018.

g8 MEMBERSHIP
MAA=1E as at 30 June 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
BERESEEEAY Number of Hong Kong Jockey Club Members
2EE8 Full Members 14,850 14,736 14,594 14,421 14,292
2EEE(S) Full Members (S) 195 188 181 185 185
EEREMEE Racing and other Members 9,279 8,993 8,690 8,339 8,154
REE8 Absent Members 2,778 2,734 2,724 2,726 4,915
RNAEE Corporate Members 186 189 186 182 180
27,288 26,840 26,375 25,853 27,726
BEREEEAY Number of The Racing Club Members
mEees Racing Club Members 1,139 1,071 962 853 747
AHEEAH Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 958 908 828 768 708
RNAEH Corporate Members 109 107 105 100 90
29,494 28,926 28,270 27,574 29,271
fEEE GROUP EMPLOYEES
MAA=+H as at 30 June 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
i Full-time 6,605 6,469 6,101 5,912 5,737
R Part-time 14,982 15,793 18,308 18,888 18,427

* REREHHER -

* Racing statistical data is for full seasons.



